
Regular Council Meeting Agenda April 9, 2024, 6:30pm  

 
 

AGENDA 

Bentley Town Council  

Tuesday April 9, 2024 

6:30pm Regular Meeting of Council 

 

 
1. Call to Order  

 
 

2. Indigenous Acknowledgement 
 
“We acknowledge that we are meeting on Treaty 6 Territory and Home of Metis 
Nation Region 3, on land that is part of a historic agreement involving mutuality 
and respect. We recognize all the many First Nations, Metis, Inuit, and non-First 
Nations whose footsteps have marked these lands.” 

 
 

3. Amendments & Acceptance of Agenda 
 
 

4. Adoption of Previous Minutes:  
 

a) Regular Meeting of Council March 26, 2024 
 

 
5. Financial: 

 
a) Prepaid Cheque Listing – Cheques No. 20240209 to 20240265 

 
 

6. Unfinished Business 
 

a) Monkey Top – Rebate of Mutual Aid Response (potential Time Limitation) 
 

 
7. New Business 

 
a) Delegation BGC – Wolf Creek 

 
b) Assessment Audit Report (2022 Roll – 2023 Tax Year) 

 
 
 

8. Correspondence 
 

a) Reminder (annexation public meeting April 18, 2024 – Bentley Southeast 
Area Structure Plan) 
 

b) Letter from MP Sean Fraser 



Regular Council Meeting Agenda April 9, 2024, 6:30pm  

 
9. Other Business 

 
 

10. Council Reports 
 

a) Mayor Rathjen 
b) Deputy Mayor Grimsdale 
c) Councillor Eastman 
d) Councillor Hansen 
e) Councillor Valiquette 
 

 
11. Adjournment       



Regular Council Meeting Minutes March 26, 2024  

 

Minutes of the Regular of the Council of the Town of Bentley 

 March 26, 2024 

 

 
Date and Place  Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Council of the Town of Bentley 

held Tuesday, March 26, 2024, at 6:30 p.m., in the Bentley Municipal Office. 
 

In Attendance Mayor Greg Rathjen 
Deputy Mayor Grimsdale 

   Councillor Valiquette 
   Councillor Eastman 
   Councillor Hansen 
   CAO, Marc Fortais 
 
Call to Order 
 
Regular Meeting Mayor Rathjen called the regular council meeting to order at 6:30pm 

 
 
Indigenous  
Acknowledgement “We acknowledge that we are meeting on Treaty 6 Territory and 

Home of Metis Nation Region 3, on land that is part of a historic agreement 
involving mutuality and respect. We recognize all the many First Nations, 
Metis, Inuit, and non-First Nations whose footsteps have marked these 
lands.” 

Read by Mayor Rathjen 
 
 

Agenda 

Motion 71/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT the agenda of 
the March 26, 2024, Regular Meeting of Mayor and Council be amended to 
include a brief discussion and update from Mayor Rathjen regarding the Gull 
Lake Watershed.” 

        Carried 

 

Motion 72/2024 Moved by Deputy Mayor Grimsdale, “THAT the 
agenda of the March 26, 2024, Regular Meeting of Mayor and Council be 
amended to include an update regarding the donation received and set 
aside for the construction of a future soccer field.” 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes March 26, 2024  

        Carried 

Motion 73/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT the amended 
agenda of the March 26, 2024, be accepted.” 

        Carried 

 
Previous Minutes   

Motion 74/2024 Moved by Deputy Mayor Grimsdale, “THAT the 
minutes of the March 12, 2024, Regular Meeting of Council be accepted.” 
 
        Carried 

  

Financial  
a) Prepaid Cheque Listing – Cheques No. 20240167 to 20240208 

Motion 75/2024 Moved by Councillor Eastman, “THAT Cheques No. 
20240167 to 20240208 be received for information.” 

           Carried 

 

New Business 

a) Delegation Susan Samson – Sylvan Lake Urgent Care Health 
Foundation 

Presentation was given to Mayor and Council regarding the formation of the 
Sylvan Lake Urgent Care Health Foundation and the Ask from Susan 
Samson for Town of Bentley to joint the Foundation. 

No decision was made regarding this but will be determined at a future 
council meeting. 

Motion 76/2024 Moved by Deputy Mayor Grimsdale, “THAT the 
presentation given by Susan Samson regarding the Sylvan Lake Urgent 
Care Foundation be received as information.” 

        Carried 

 

b) Bentley Arena Ice Plant Replacement 

Motion 77/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT Mayor and 
Council authorize CAO Marc Fortais to award a contract to Red Deer 
Heating and Refrigeration to construct a new ice plant for the Bentley Arena 
to a maximum value not to exceed $802,317.05; AND 

THAT this will include all costs including any required engineered drawings, 
reviews, permitting and code compliance, and ground preparation for the 
site; AND 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes March 26, 2024  

THAT CAO Marc Fortais formally request and secure a grant from Lacombe 
County for 50% of the funding to support the utilization of the facility by 
county residents; AND 

THAT should Lacombe County not approve funding to support the ice plant, 
that CAO Marc Fortais, undertake to obtain debenture funding to support the 
ice plant replacement to be paid back through future LGFF and/or CCBF 
Grant Funding in 2025; AND 

THAT the remainder of the funds for the project be allocated from 2024 
LGFF and/or CCBF Grant funding.” 

        Carried 

 

Correspondence 

a) Lacombe County Council Highlights – Regular Meeting March 14, 
2024 
 

b) Lacombe County Council Highlights – Special Meeting March 14, 
2024 

 
c) Lacombe County – Volunteer Farm Vehicle Checks 

 
d) Assessment Model Review – Minister Ric McIver 

 

Motion 78/2024 Moved by Councillor Valiquette, “THAT 
correspondence item a) to d) be accepted as information.” 

        Carried 

 

Other Business 

a) Urban Hens 

Councillor Hansen shared some information with Mayor and Council 
regarding other communities that have programs to support Urban Hens. 
She also mentioned a desire to amend the animal control bylaw to include 
language that would allow urban hens within the Town of Bentley. Currently 
the bylaw only allows hens on parcels larger than 1 acre. Mayor Rathjen 
indicated that items such as this, should be added within the upcoming 
strategic planning and goal setting to not create additional burden on 
administration currently with the current priorities.  

Motion 79/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT an objective to 
review the Animal Control Bylaw to include urban hens be considered as 
part of the strategic planning process.” 

        Carried  

 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes March 26, 2024  

b) Gull Lake Watershed 

Mayor Rathjen indicated he continues to attend these meeting and is 
working with the committee to look at how Bentley best serves on that 
committee. He indicated that he would report back in the future regarding 
this. No motion was made regarding this topic. 

 

c) Soccer Donation Update 

Deputy Mayor Grimsdale asked administration what we were doing 
regarding recognition of the donation. Administration indicated it was the 
understanding that the donation was to remain anonymous at present and 
this had been confirmed previously. Deputy Mayor Grimsdale indicated that 
this was not what was being communicated to him and his understanding 
was different. He advised that administration may want to follow up with the 
party to understand if they want some form of recognition. Administration 
agreed to do so. No motion was made regarding this topic. 

 

Adjournment  
 Mayor Rathjen adjourned the March 26, 2024, Regular Council Meeting 

at 7:45pm 
  
         
  
_________________________    _________________________ 

Mayor Greg Rathjen      CAO Marc Fortais 









April 9, 2024  – Unfinished Business – Monkey Top – Rebate of Mutual Aid Response (potential time limitation) 

 
 
Agenda Date:  April 9, 2024 
Agenda Item: Unfinished Business – Monkey Top - Rebate of Mutual Aid Response (potential 

 time limitation) 
 

 
 
LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENT/AUTHORITY 

 
The Municipal Government Act (MGA), RSA 2000, Chapter M-26 of the Revised Statutes of Alberta, 
as amended, Division 1 provides the Council of a Municipality may pass By-laws for the safety, health 
and welfare of people and the protection of people and property. Further, section 553(1)(g) and 553(2) 
of the MGA also allows for the transfer or any unpaid costs of fire extinguishment to be added to the 
tax roll if the municipality has passed a bylaw making the owner of a parcel liable for expenses and 
costs related to the municipality extinguishing fires on a parcel. 
 
Further Bylaw 128/2008 a bylaw of the Town of Bentley in the Province of Alberta to provide for the 
establishment and operation of a volunteer fire department and to provide for the protection and 
preservation of life and property within the Town of Bentley, was passed on August 12th, 2008. 
 
October 14, 2014, Policy 50-2014 Bentley District Fire Department Fire Protection and Emergency 
Response, Part C – Charges for Fire and Emergency Response Equipment and Personnel was 
approved. The policy also provides guidance for rates and costs that can be recovered in relation to 
fire and emergency response equipment and personnel. 
 
 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 

 

On March 12, 2024, the Town of Bentley Mayor and Council made a motion to issue an invoice to the 

property owner of the monkey top, with a condition that should the monkey top choose to rebuild, that 

the amount of the invoice could be refunded. The refund would be contingent upon a final occupancy 

permit being approved and issued once construction is completed. The council report from the March 

12, 2024, meeting is attached to this report as (Attachment #1). 

 

The motion approved is as follows: 

 

“Motion 67/2024 Moved by Councillor Valiquette, “THAT Mayor and Council authorize CAO Marc 

Fortais to issue an invoice to the property owner of the property located at 5002 50th Ave (Lot 4, Block 

18, Plan 5085 ET) in the amount of $40,439.27; AND 

 

THAT the invoice to be issued is intended to recover costs of fire response (staff time and 

equipment costs invoiced to the Town of Bentley by Lacombe County) throughout January 2024 

and in relation to the Monkey Top Fire, which occurred on said property and for which the recoverable 

costs have been charged in accordance with Bylaw 128/2008 from the Town of Bentley and Bylaw 

1337/21 Lacombe County; AND 

 



April 9, 2024  – Unfinished Business – Monkey Top – Rebate of Mutual Aid Response (potential time limitation) 

THAT if the invoice remains unpaid after 120 days, the amount be transferred to the associated 

property tax account in accordance with the Municipal Government Act, RSA 2000, Chapter M-26 of 

the revised Statutes of Alberta, Section 553 (1)(g); AND 

 

THAT if the current owner of the Monkey Top moved forward to rebuild the Monkey Top or a similar 

business, the Town of Bentley will refund the amount of $40,439.27 (the fire response costs 

recovery invoiced); AND 

 

THAT this amount only be refunded when a final occupancy permit has been approved and issued.” 

 

          Carried 

 

Although the motion is fair and equitable, and recovers the costs associated to the bill that the Town 

of Bentley will receive for mutual aid and provides a refund if and when the current owner chooses to 

rebuild, it is not limited by time.  

 

Administration is recommending that the motion be modified to include a time limit to undertake the 

rebuilding, so that the refund of the cost recovery for mutual aid is an incentive to rebuild as quickly as 

possible and is tied to a time limit. This time limit could be one year, two years or whatever Council 

feels is a reasonable amount of time. The idea behind the refund is that it will not create an excess 

burden for taxpayers, because the taxes generated by a rebuild will offset the costs of the refund to 

the local taxpayer. The rebuild in itself will result in additional taxes, compared to what was previously 

collected on the old building.  

 

 

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION 

 

Recommended Motion: 

 

Motion #67/2024, be amended by an additional motion to add the requirement to rebuild within 

a certain time limit as follows: 

 

“THAT in order for the current owner of the Monkey Top to be eligible to receive a refund of 

$40,439.27 for charges related to cost recovery of mutual aid in relation to the Monkey Top Fire, the 

invoice must be paid in full; AND 

 

THAT the current owner of the Monkey Top must complete the construction of a new building and be 

issued a final occupancy permit, within two years from the date that the Town of Bentley issued the 

invoice.” 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

 

1) March 12, 2024, Council Report – Monkey Top Fire 2024 Cost Recovery and 

Attachments 

 

        _________________________________ 

        Marc Fortais, CAO    



March 12, 2024  – New Business – 2024 Monkey Top Fire – Cost Recovery

Agenda Date: March 12, 2024 
Agenda Item: New Business: Monkey Top Fire 2024 – Cost Recovery 

LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENT/AUTHORITY 

The Municipal Government Act (MGA), RSA 2000, Chapter M-26 of the Revised Statutes of Alberta, 
as amended, Division 1 provides the Council of a Municipality may pass By-laws for the safety, health 
and welfare of people and the protection of people and property. Further, section 553(1)(g) and 553(2) 
of the MGA also allows for the transfer or any unpaid costs of fire extinguishment to be added to the 
tax roll if the municipality has passed a bylaw making the owner of a parcel liable for expenses and 
costs related to the municipality extinguishing fires on a parcel. 

Further Bylaw 128/2008 a bylaw of the Town of Bentley in the Province of Alberta to provide for the 
establishment and operation of a volunteer fire department (Attachment #1) and to provide for the 
protection and preservation of life and property within the Town of Bentley, was passed on August 
12th, 2008. 

October 14, 2014, Policy 50-2014 Bentley District Fire Department Fire Protection and Emergency 
Response, Part C – Charges for Fire and Emergency Response Equipment and Personnel 
(Attachment #2) was approved. The policy also provides guidance for rates and costs that can be 
recovered in relation to fire and emergency response equipment and personnel. 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 

On January 16, 2024, at approximately 1:30am, first responders from the Bentley Fire Department 
responded to a fire at the Monkey Top Saloon in Bentley. Fire Fighting efforts were supported by 
Bentley, Lacombe County, City of Lacombe, Blackfalds, and Eckville Fire Departments.  

It was a sad day for Bentley, as we lost another important historical building in the community. Just 
over a year ago we also experienced the loss of the iconic grain elevator and on January 16th we lost 
the Monkey Top.  

The original building Putland and Thorp site was destroyed by fire in 1919. The gentleman who owned 
that store was Archie Putland and Frank (Cappy) Thorp. Cappy was the first Mayor when Bentley was 
first incorporated into a village in 1915. The Putland and Thorp building was replaced by the Bentley 
Co-Operative under the management of Mr. Bolton, and lastly by Chas MacDougall. The business 
was sold to WM. A Holmes in 1933 and operated as Bentley Mercantile. The building stood for many 
years and most recently, until January 16, 2024, as the Monkey Top a staple for residents, tourists, 
and visitors regardless of if they were the leather worn, done it all biker or the time worn seen it all 
senior or families having a meal with their kids after checking out the amazing businesses or farmers 
market in Bentley. It was a place of celebration for our hockey and ball teams and for the parents who 
drive their kids to and from games and practices. The Monkey Top was not just a place to gather, but 

 ATTACHMENT #1



March 12, 2024  – New Business – 2024 Monkey Top Fire – Cost Recovery 

a place where it did not matter what your background or style is. It was a place of spirited declaration 
of independence and togetherness.  
 
The property owner has worked hard to ensure that the site was cleaned up in a timely manner, while 
working with their insurance to address their settlement and claim. The Town of Bentley would like to 
thank the property owner for working with their insurance company to undertake the cleanup efforts 
diligently and as quickly as possible. The loss of the Monkey Top is significant to the community and 
to the property owner.  
 
Policy 50/2014 – Bentley District Fire Department Fire Protection and Emergency Response 
was adopted and approved on October 14, 2014. The policy provides some guidance regarding rates 
of charge for fire and emergency response equipment and personnel responding to a fire.  
 
The policy is also written in such a way, that it is not clear: 
 
Part C – Charges for Fire and Emergency Response Equipment and Personnel states: 
 

a) Subject to the exceptions listed, nor charge will be made for fire or emergency responses to 
residents and ratepayers of the Town of Bentley, Lacombe County, and other municipalities of 
which a mutual aid agreement is in effect.* 
 

b) A charge will be levied for responses involving; 
i. a motor vehicle accident 

 
ii. a fire or emergency response involving a railway or originating on a railway right 

of way. 
 

c) The rate of charge for fire and emergency response equipment referred to in Section b) is as 
follows: 

i. Town or County Engine    $500.00 per hour 
 

ii. Rescue Truck      $500.00 per hour 
 

iii. Equipment & supplies other than the Engine  costs plus. 
or Rescue Truck  15% administration 
 

iv. Personnel other than Fire Department Members costs plus 
15% administration 

 
d) The rate of charge referred to in Section c) above shall be applied for the period commencing 

from when the vehicles and equipment leave the firehall until the vehicles and equipment are 
back in the fire hall and deemed to be in service, rounded up to the next one-half hour. 
 

e) At the discretion of the Chief Administrative Officer; 
i. The charge levied for response may be adjusted based on the level of service 

provided at the incident. 
 

ii. Other costs may be charged for items including but not limited to: 
 

• Replacement of basic supplies such as foam 



March 12, 2024  – New Business – 2024 Monkey Top Fire – Cost Recovery 

• Means and refreshments for the firefighters. 
• Equipment fuel costs  
• Lost of damaged equipment and protective clothing  
• Fire investigation costs. 
• Specialty services 

 
It should be noted that there is no formalized mutual aid agreement in place. There are 
partnership agreements such as LREMP, but they do not specifically outline fees and charges 
for mutual aid.  

 
Part C item a above is intended to mean that residents and ratepayers of Lacombe County and Town 
of Bentley will not be charged for emergency response equipment and personal responding to a fire if 
a mutual aid agreement exists. There is no record in Bentley or Lacombe County of any mutual aid 
agreement being established. In addition, section e indicates that at the discretion of the CAO a 
charge may be levied for response and adjusted based on the level of service provided at the 
incident.  
 
Administration has reviewed Lacombe County’s Fire Services Bylaw 1337/21 (Attachment #3), under 
section 15. Recovery of Costs it states: 
 
15.1 Where a fire department has taken any action whatsoever for the purposes of providing fire 
protection and emergency response services in or outside of the County, the County may charge any 
fees and costs so incurred to any or all of the following persons, namely; 
 

a) the person or persons causing or contributing to the fire; or 
 

b) the owner or occupant of the parcel of land or any other thing in respect to which the action 
    was taken. 
 

and all other persons charged are jointly and severally liable for payment of fees and costs to the 
County.  
 
An additional review of other communities in the area was also undertaken, to understand if they too 
bill in these situations and if they would seek reimbursement of cost for fire response from a private 
landowner or their insurance for fires that occur on their private property. In some cases, 
municipalities would not bill and would cover all associated response costs through taxation. The 
following were the municipalities we checked with: 
 
City of Lacombe  Bills for responses – uses provincial rate table for equipment charges. 
Town of Eckville  Policy in place to bill – would determine if fire were in town. 
Town of Sylvan Lake  Has not billed for mutual aid in past. 
Village of Alix   Bill for response according to established policy 
Village of Clive  Bills for response according to established policy 
Town of Rimbey Not responsible for fire services costs until 2030 – Ponoka County 

handles fire services. Ponoka County does not bill from what they 
understand. 

 
 
 



March 12, 2024  – New Business – 2024 Monkey Top Fire – Cost Recovery 

Administration also followed up with Rob de Pruis (National Director, Consumer & Industry Relations 
with the Insurance Bureau of Canada. Mr. de Pruis indicated that although they are seeing a rising 
trend in municipalities that are billing for structure fire response costs, these are a minority across 
Canada. He indicated that typically if a business or residence is insured for fire response costs, there 
is typically an upper limit on the amount that can be paid. In instances where a large bill goes to the 
property owner, it can have an unintended consequence of impacting the claims ratings and cause 
insurance premiums to rise within a community if there is an insurance payout for those costs.  
However, administration has provided this report in alignment with the established bylaw and policy 
that provides direction to prepare a bill for the response to the property owner.  
 
FINANCIAL 
 
Charges Billed by Lacombe County (Invoiced to the Town of Bentley) 
 
Lacombe Fire Department Charges (January 16 & 17, 2024) 
 Pumper/Ladder Unit #4 (8hrs @ $700.00)  $5,600.00 

Utility #2 (8 hrs. @ $205.00)    $1,640.00 
Tender #3 (12.5 @ $700.00)    $8,750.00 
Tower #1 (11.75 @ $700.00)    $8,225.00 
Pumper/Ladder Unit #4 (1.75 @ $700.00)  $1,225.00 

 Total Lacombe County Charges     $25,440.00 
 
Blackfalds Personnel Charges (21 hours total)       
 Fire Chief (3hrs @ $35.77)    $   107.31 
 Captain 1 (7.50 @ $31.42)    $   235.65 
 Class A Firefighter 1 ( 7.50 @ $26.69)  $   200.18 
 Probationary Firefighter (3.00 @ $17.40)  $     52.20 
 Total Blackfalds Charges      $     595.34 
 
DB Bobcat Charges (Hoe & Excavator)       
 Hoe Mobilization (1 hr @ $300.00)   $   300.00 
 John Deere Exca (11 hr @ $185.00)   $2,035.00 
 GST       $   116.75 
 Total DB Bobcat Charges      $  2,451.75 
Bentley Fire Personnel       $  6,827.18 
Eckville Fire           

Tender (10.25 hrs @ $500.00)     $  5,125.00 
 

Total Charges Billed by Lacombe County       $40,439.27 
 
Equipment Time Town of Bentley 
 
January 16, 2024 

Engine (14.50 hrs @ $500.00 )   $7,250.00 
Rescue (14.50 hrs @ $350.00)   $5,075.00 
Rapid (14.50 hrs @ $350.00)    $5,075.00 
Command (14.50 hrs @ $350.00)   $5,075.00 
Engine (1.50 hrs @ $500.00)    $   750.00 
Rescue ( 1.50 hrs @ $350.00)   $   525.00 
Total January 16, 2024, Additional Equipment   $23,750.00  



March 12, 2024  – New Business – 2024 Monkey Top Fire – Cost Recovery 

 
January 17, 2024 

Engine (1.50 hrs @ $500.00)    $   750.00 
Rapid (1.50 hrs @ $350.00)    $   525.00 
Engine (2.50 hrs @ $500.00)    $1,250.00 
Rapid (2.50 hrs @ $350.00)    $   875.00 
Command (2.50 hrs @ $350.00)   $   875.00 

 Total January 17, 2024, Additional Equipment   $  4,275.00  
 
January 23, 2024 
 Rapid (6.00 hrs @ $350.00)      $  2,100.00 
 
Total Equipment Time Town of Bentley     $30,125.00 
 
TOTAL RECOVERABLE COSTS (Based on actual calculations)   $70,564.27 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION 
 
Due to the lack of clarity in the policy regarding billing for Bentley Fire Department response and time, 
Administration is recommending that no time be billed for Bentley fire Equipment. This would mean 
that $30,125.00 as outlined above will not be billed. Administration is only recommending that the 
amount charged and billed by Lacombe County for mutual aid costs, which also includes paid 
volunteer time for Bentley Fire fighters be charged, this amounts to a bill of $40,439.27. 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
THAT Mayor and Council authorize CAO Marc Fortais to issue an invoice to the property owner of the 
property located at 5002 50TH Ave (Lot 4, Block 18, Plan 5085ET) in the amount of $40,439.27 AND 
 
THAT the invoice to be issued is intended to recover costs of fire response (staff time and 
equipment costs invoiced to the Town of Bentley by Lacombe County) throughout January 2024, 
and in relation to the Monkey Top Fire, which occurred on said property and for which the recoverable 
costs have been charged in accordance with Bylaw 128/2008 from the Town of Bentley and Bylaw 
1337/21 Lacombe County; AND 
 
THAT the amount invoiced and payable by the property owner be payable within 120 days from the 
date of issue of the invoice; AND 
 
THAT if the invoice remains unpaid after 120 days, the amount be transferred to the associated 
property tax account in accordance with the Municipal Government Act, RSA 2000, Chapter M-26 of 
the Revised Statutes of Alberta, Section 553(1)(g) 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 

1) Mayor and Council could consider offering a refund or rebate of all or a portion of the amounts 
billed, tied to a development permit. Should the existing owner of the Monkey top consider 
rebuilding. This would mean that if a development permit is applied for, a condition of that 
permit could include a refund of all, or a portion of the amount billed in relation to the Fire 
response for the Monkey Top specifically tied to the issuance of an occupancy permit for the 
reopening of the building. The logic for this is that future taxes would pay for the equipment 
costs associated with the fire and would create no burden for other taxpayers. 
 



March 12, 2024  – New Business – 2024 Monkey Top Fire – Cost Recovery 

2) No billing is prepared for the Monkey top; however, the Town of Bentley will still be required to 
pay $40,439.27 in fees related to mutual aid billed by Lacombe County. This was an 
unbudgeted item for 2024 and funds would need to be found to cover these costs. This could 
result in an overall tax increase to the public for the 2024 tax year.  
 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

1) Bylaw 128/2008 a bylaw of the Town of Bentley in the Province of Alberta to provide for the 
establishment and operation of a volunteer fire department. 
 

2) Policy 50/2014 Bentley District Fire Department Fire Protection and Emergency Response, 
Part C – Charges for Fire and Emergency Response Equipment and Personnel  
 

3) Bylaw 1337/21 Fire Protection and Emergency Response Bylaw – Lacombe County  
 

4) Breakdown of Costs associated with Monkey Top Fire Response 
 
 
 
        _________________________________ 
        Marc Fortais, CAO    



































































Town of Bentley
Presentation









Who We Are Locally!









Initial 2023 Needs Assessment 



BGC Programs In Bentley

PROGRAM DESCRIPTIONS
GRADES K - 6 PROGRAMS

After School Program
Monday - Friday

3:15p.m. - 5:45p.m.

The After School Program offers a diversity of experiences that provide 
opportunities for adventure, play and discovery. It includes open-ended 
activities that support social, emotional and physical development through 
connecting with children and their families in a caring, positive and 
supportive way. It operates during the school year and includes indoor and 
outdoor active play, arts and crafts, imagination stations, life-skills 
instruction, leadership training, recreation and a nutritional snack.

S.O.D. (School’s Out Day) Program
Professional Development Days 

8:30a.m. - 5:30p.m.

The S.O.D. Program is a full-day program of engaging experiences 
organized in a similar fashion as the After School Program. The S.O.D. 
Program operates during the school year during Professional Development 
Days and In Lieu Days for schools.



Actual Usage in 2023

Number of Visits Number of Programming Days Average Daily Attendance Number of Individual Youth
2023 426 69 5 49

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450 2023 After School Program  (5-11) A minimum 
attendance of 13 

children per day at 
a fee of $15 per 
day needed to 

cover costs



Number of Visits Number of Programming
Days

Average Daily
Attendance

Number of Individual
Youth

2023 59 6 10 23

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70 2023 Professional Development Days (Ages 5-11)

A minimum of 13 
children per day needed 

to cover costs.
2024 Daily Average Attendance

January – 4.75 children per day
February – 6.75 children per day

March – 7 children per day



2024 Bentley Budget
Income: Projected: Actual:

Child Registration Fees (13 youth/day) $48,000.00 $22,150.00

Fundraising $  4,000.00 $0.00

Grants/Donations $30,000.00 $1,500.00

Total Income Needed $82,000.00 $23,650.00

Expenses: Projected: Actual:

Administration Costs $6,750.00 $5,000.00

Wages $55,250.00 $53,000.00

Programming Costs $20,000.00 $17,000.00

Total Expenses $82,000.00 $75,000.00

Shortfall for 2024 = $51,350



Next Steps













































































PUBLIC MEETING 

Proposed Annexa�on of Land by 
the Town of Bentley 

from Lacombe County 

Thursday, April 18, 2024 @ 6-8 PM 

Blindman Valley Agricultural Centre, 5202 53 Street Close, Bentley 
(located behind the Bentley Arena off of 50th Street) 

The proposed annexation area incorporates lands in the north half of Section 23, Township 40, 
Range 1, West of the 5th Meridian, located to the south and east of Bentley (shown as the 
shaded area on the map below).  The proposed annexation area was the subject of the 
Southeast Bentley Area Structure Plan that was approved by Lacombe County Council in 
November 2023. 

The purpose of the meeting is to present information about the annexation proposal and the 
process undertaken to date and to provide the public with an opportunity to comment on the 
proposed annexation. A brief presentation will be provided at the start of the meeting followed 
by a question / answer and discussion session. 

For more information, please contact Albert Flootman, Project Lead, Parkland Community 
Planning Services at (403) 343-3394 or albert.flootman@pcps.ab.ca, or Marc Fortais, CAO, 
Town of Bentley at (403) 748-4044 or mfortais@townofbentley.ca. 

 

mailto:albert.flootman@pcps.ab.ca




 

 

Greg Rathjen 

Council Report March 2024 

 

 
• March 11   County/ Bentley community LDP meeting as we set up for a  

public meeting for the proposed Annexation.   
 

• March 11  preparation meeting for CAO evaluation. 
 

• March 12  regular council meeting. 
- Presentation by PCPS on Bylaw changes for our Land use bylaw, 

will be brought to a public meeting before it comes to Council for 
first reading.  

 
• March 13  LREMP meeting 

- Preparing for emergency response local and co  
- Responding Reps area from meeting and planning for tests ,  

progressive plans for future tabletop plans and area programs 
 

• March 26  Regular Council Meeting 
- Presentation By Susan Samson on the setting up of the Urgent Care       

Central Alberta  Foundation  
 

• March 28  CAO Marc Fortais and I, made a presentation of need and request  
regarding Bentley Arena Ice Plant to Lacombe County Council Meeting 

 



 

Dale Grimsdale 

REPORT FOR March 2024 
 
 

• March 6 - LRWSC Board meeting - Highlights include the Auditor report, waste haul 
summary, Account Payables and year to date budget report, Manager report which included 
camera update for sites, staff training and Dried Lake Landfill contract renewal. EPR 
transition discussions. Bentley confirmed as registered.  

 
• March 11- CAO evaluation meeting  

 
• March 12 - Regular Council Meeting 

 
• March 18- Parent School Board Advisory Council Meeting- Highlights include: 

 
- Administrative update 
- Grade 6 chili fundraiser 
- New timetables for 2024/25 
- Sports update 
- Cellphone policy classroom ban was voted and passed. 
- Trustee report.  
- I presented a council and town update. 
- New students with high needs update including EA hire. BGC update 

 
• March 19- Attended Museum Board meeting. 

 
• March 26- Regular Council Meeting  

 



 

 

Lenore Eastman 

REPORT March 2024 

 

• March 12  Regular Council Mee�ng  
 
 

• March 14  Ag Society Mee�ng 
                       - pu�ng new LED lights in main hall 
 
 

• March 19  Regular Council Mee�ng  
 
 

• March 25  Lacombe founda�on mee�ng  
                      - went over audit, passed  

 

 

 



 

Pam Hansen 

REPORT FOR March 2024 

 

 

• March 12 Regular Council Mee�ng 
 

• March 13  Bentley Library Mee�ng  
 

• March  26  Regular Council Mee�ng 
 



 

 

 

Brenda Valiquette 

REPORT FOR March 2024 

 
 

• March 11, 2024  Town of Bentley/Lacombe County IDP Commitee Mee�ng 
 

• March 12, 2024  Regular Council Mee�ng 
 

• March 26, 2024  Regular Council Mee�ng 
 

 


	Agenda -April 9, 2024 - Regular Council Meeting.pdf
	April 9, 2024- Regular Meeting of Council - Minutes of March 26, 2024
	Cheque Listing  #20240209 to #20240265
	Unfinished Business - April 9, 2024- Monkey Top Fire Response (time limit for refund)
	Attachment #1 - March 12, 2024- Monkey Top Fire Response
	Attachment #1 - March 12, 2024- Monkey Top Fire Response.pdf
	Attachment #1 - Bylaw 128-2008 Bylaw to establish the operation of a volunteer fire department
	Attachment #2 - Policy 50-2014 Bentley District Fire Department - Fire Protection and Emergency Response
	Attachment #3 - Bylaw 1337-21 Fire Protection and Emergency Response Bylaw - Lacombe County
	Attachment #4 - Monkey Top Cost Recovery Breakdown

	New Business - BGC Presentation 2024
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	BGC Programs In Bentley
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	2024 Bentley Budget
	Slide Number 14

	New Business - Assessment Audit Report (2022 Roll - 2023 - Tax Year)
	Correspondance - Bentley annexation public meeting ad
	Correspondance - Letter from MP Sean Fraser

